MEDICAL OFFICE MANAGEMENT

LEGAL affing cation **Staffing Communication**

Insurance ETHICAL TEAMWORK Education

Physicians Records

MEDICAL OFFICE MANAGEMENT

QUALITY Interviews Bayroll CONTRACTS Policies
Patients Billing

GOALS Billing

SECOND EDITION

Christine Malone



Vice President, Health Science and TED:

Julie Levin Alexander

Director, Portfolio Management:

Marlene McHugh Pratt **Editor in Chief:** Ashley Dodge **Editorial Assistant:** Emily Edling

Associate Sponsoring Editor: Zoya Zaman Product Marketing Manager: Rachele Strober Field Marketing Manager: Brittany Hammond Vice President, Digital Studio and Content

Production: Paul DeLuca

Director, Digital Studio and Content

Production: Brian Hyland

Managing Producer: Jennifer Sargunar Content Producer (Team Lead): Faraz

Sharique Ali

Content Producer: Neha Sharma **Senior Manager, Global Rights and**

Permissions: Tanvi Bhatia

Operations Specialist: MaryAnn Gloriande Cover Design: Cenveo Publisher Services Cover Photo: MarsBars/E+/Getty Images Chapter Opener Photo: Volodymyr

Krasyuk/Shutterstock

Full-Service Management and

Composition: iEnergizer Aptara®, Ltd.

Printer/Binder: LSC General **Cover Printer:** Phoenix Color

Text Font: ITC Garamond Std 10/12

Copyright © 2019, 2013 by Pearson Education, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Manufactured in the United States of America. This publication is protected by copyright, and permission should be obtained from the publisher prior to any prohibited reproduction, storage in a retrieval system, or transmission in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise. For information regarding permissions, request forms, and the appropriate contacts within the Pearson Education Global Rights and Permissions department, please visit www.pearsoned.com/permissions/.

Acknowledgments of third-party content appear on the appropriate page within the text.

Unless otherwise indicated herein, any third-party trademarks, logos, or icons that may appear in this work are the property of their respective owners, and any references to third-party trademarks, logos, icons, or other trade dress are for demonstrative or descriptive purposes only. Such references are not intended to imply any sponsorship, endorsement, authorization, or promotion of Pearson's products by the owners of such marks, or any relationship between the owner and Pearson Education, Inc., authors, licensees, or distributors.

Library of Congress Cataloging-in-Publication Data

Names: Malone, Christine, author.

Title: Medical office management / Christine Malone.

Description: Second edition. | Boston: Pearson, [2019] | Includes

bibliographical references and index.

 $Identifiers: LCCN\ 2017035720\ |\ ISBN\ 9780134868288\ |\ ISBN\ 0134868285$

Subjects: LCSH: Medical offices--Management.

Classification: LCC R728.8 .M279 2019 | DDC 610.68--dc23 LC record available

at https://lccn.loc.gov/2017035720



ISBN-13: 978-0-13-486828-8 ISBN-10: 0-13-486828-5 To every administrative and clinical staff member who ever reported to me as a medical office manager. I have learned much from my teams and would not be a successful manager without being surrounded by amazing people.

Brief Contents

Preface xvii

About the Author Acknowledgments	
CHAPTER 1	Today's Healthcare Environment 2
CHAPTER 2	Duties of the Medical Office Manager 24
CHAPTER 3	Communications in the Medical Office 42
CHAPTER 4	Managing the Front Office 68
CHAPTER 5	Appointment Scheduling 92
CHAPTER 6	Medical Records Management 108
CHAPTER 7	Legal and Ethical Issues in Managing the Medical Office 138
CHAPTER 8	Personnel Management 156
CHAPTER 9	Regulatory Compliance in the Healthcare Setting 182
CHAPTER 10	Use of Computers in the Medical Office 204
CHAPTER 11	Office Policies and Procedures 220
CHAPTER 12	Accounting and Payroll in the Medical Office 234
CHAPTER 13	Billing and Collections 262
CHAPTER 14	Health Insurance 286
CHAPTER 15	Procedural and Diagnostic Coding 324

viii Brief Contents **Quality Improvement and Risk Management CHAPTER 16** Marketing the Medical Office **CHAPTER 17 APPENDICES** Internet Websites for Healthcare Professionals **APPENDIX A** 382 Sample Medical Office Policy and Procedure Manual **APPENDIX B APPENDIX C** Guidelines for Documenting in the Medical Record to **Ensure Proper Coding** 401 **Answers to Chapter Case Study Questions APPENDIX D** Registered Medical Assistant (RMA) Task List 409 **APPENDIX E APPENDIX F** CMA (AAMA) Occupational Analysis Medical Terminology Word Parts 414 **APPENDIX G**

Glossary 427 Index 437

Contents

Preface xvii About the Author xxi Acknowledgments 1	Rheumatologists 15 Sleep Medicine Physicians 15 Surgeons 15 Urologists 16 Medical Practice Settings 16 Types of Healthcare Professionals 16				
CHAPTER 1 Today's Healthcare Environment 2	The Medical Office Manager 18 Traits of the Successful Medical Office Manager 19 Continuing Education Opportunities for the Medical				
Chapter Outline 2 Learning Objectives 2 Key Terms 3 Case Study 3	Office Manager 20 The Future of Healthcare Management 20				
Introduction 4 Choosing Healthcare Management as a Profession 4 Types of Medical Practice Ownership 5 Types of Healthcare Settings 9	CHAPTER 2 Duties of the Medical Office Manager 24				
Types of Physicians 9	Chapter Outline 24				
Family Practice Physicians 10	Learning Objectives 24				
Pediatricians 10	Key Terms 25				
Internists 10	Case Study 25				
Specialty Care Practices 11	Introduction 26				
Allergists 11	Different Management Theories 26				
Cardiologists 11	Management versus Supervision 27				
Dermatologists 11	Delegating Authority to Others 28				
Gastroenterologists 12	Coaching and Mentoring Staff 28				
Gerontologists 12	Motivating Employees 29				
Gynecologists 12	Characteristics of the Medical Office Manager 30				
Hematologists 12	Responsibilities of the Medical Office Manager 30				
Hepatologists 12	Different Leadership Styles 31				
Infectious Disease Physicians 12	Intimidating Leadership Style 31				
Nephrologists 12	Authoritarian Leadership Style 31				
Neurologists 12	Humanistic Leadership Style 31				
Obstetricians 13	Democratic Leadership Style 32				
Oncologists 13	Catalystic Leadership Style 32				
Ophthalmologists and Optometrists 13	Mentoring Leadership Style 32				
Orthopedists 13	Effective Staff Meetings 33				
Otolaryngologists 13	Creating a Staff Meeting Agenda 33				
Physiatrists 14	Composing Staff Meeting Minutes 34				
Podiatrists 14	The Medical Office Manager's Role with Supplies 34				
Psychiatrists 14	Contracting with Suppliers 34				
Psychologists 15	Ordering and Receiving Supplies 34				
Pulmonologists 15	Negotiating Service Contracts 35				
Radiologists 15	Employee Theft 36				

CHAPTER 3 Communications in the Medical Office 42

Chapter Outline 42 Learning Objectives 42 Key Terms 43 Case Study 43 Introduction 44 Verbal Communication 44 Active Listening 45 Written Communication 46 Use of the Spell Check Feature 46 Grammar, Spelling, and Punctuation Use Writing Numbers in Correspondence 48 Rules for Plurals of Medical Terms 48 Components of the Business Letter 49 Use of Fonts 51 Sending Letters to Patients 51 Proofreading 52 Accepted Abbreviations 52 Memos within the Office 52 Mailing Written Communications 53 Use of Window Envelopes 53 Postage Meters 53 Classifications of Mail, Size Requirements, and Postage 54 Buying Postage Online 54 Restricted Materials 54 Other Delivery Options 55 Communicating with Patients via E-mail 55 Managing Incoming Mail and Correspondence 55 Reading Body Language 55 Therapeutic Touch 57 Therapeutic Communication 57 Communicating with Physicians 58 Communicating with Peers and Direct Reports 58 Communicating with Patients 61 Dealing with Difficult Patients or Employees 63 Working with Different Personality Styles 63 Communicating across Cultures 64

CHAPTER 4 Managing the Front Office 68

Chapter Outline 68
Learning Objectives 68
Key Terms 69
Case Study 69
Introduction 70
Telephone System Features 70
Last Number Redial 71
Conference Call 71
Speaker Telephone 71

Call Forwarding 72 Direct Telephone Lines 72 Hold Feature 72 Music on Hold 72 Special Features 72 Telephone Etiquette in the Medical Office 73 Types of Incoming Calls to the Medical Office 74 Screening Telephone Calls 74 Directing Patient Calls to Physicians 74 Telephone Triage 74 Prioritizing Telephone Calls 76 Emergency Telephone Calls 76 Handling Difficult Callers 77 Calls from Emotionally Upset Patients 77 Hard-to-Understand Callers 77 Documenting Calls from Patients 77 Taking Telephone Messages 78 Using an Answering Service 78 Personal Phone Calls Calling Patients 79 Leaving Messages 79 Calling Other Healthcare Facilities 79 Using a Telephone Directory 80 Using an Online Directory 80 *Using a Rolodex*TM *System* 80 Making Long-Distance or Toll-Free Calls 81 Calling in Prescriptions and Prescription Refill Requests 81 Arranging for Translation Services 81 Telecommunication Relay Systems 82 Maintaining the Reception Area 82 Reading Material in the Reception Area 83 Seating in the Medical Office Reception Area 84 Greeting Patients in the Medical Office 84 Administering Paperwork at the Front Desk 85 Collecting Payments at the Front Desk 85 Notifying Patients of Delays 87 Visitors to the Medical Office 87

CHAPTER 5 Appointment Scheduling 92

Chapter Outline 92
Learning Objectives 92
Key Terms 93
Case Study 93
Introduction 94
Scheduling New Patient Appointments 94
New Patient versus Established Patient
Appointments 96
Allowing the Appropriate Amount of Time for
Appointments 96
Creating an Appointment Matrix 97
Convenient Scheduling 98
Computer Scheduling versus Paper Appointment
Books 98

Types of Appointment Scheduling 99
The Appointment Schedule as a Legal Document 100
Allowing for Unforeseen Appointments 100
Triage and Appointment Scheduling 100
Appointment Reminder Systems 100
Making Corrections to the Appointment
Schedule 101
No-Show Appointments 101
Follow-Up for No-Show Appointments 102
Achieving the Most Efficient Scheduling System 102
Managing the Physician's Professional and Travel
Schedule 102
Scheduling Hospital Services and Admissions 103
Arranging Transportation for Patients 104

CHAPTER 6 Medical Records Management 108

Chapter Outline 108
Learning Objectives 108
Key Terms 109
Case Study 109
Introduction 110
Information Contained in the Medical Record 110
Purpose of the Medical Record 111
Signing Off on the Medical Record 114
Keeping Chart Notes Professional 114
Forms of Charting 115
Soap Note Charting 115
Problem-Oriented Medical Record Charting 115
Use of Flowcharts in the Medical Record 116
Progress Notes 116
Using Abbreviations in Charting 116
Charting Communications with Patients 116
Filing and Filing Systems 118
Alphabetic Filing 118
Shingling Items for Medical Records 118
Numerical Filing 118
Cross-Referencing Medical Records 119
Locating Misfiled Medical Records 120
File Storage Systems 120
Retention of Medical Records 121
Active, Inactive, and Closed Patient Files 121
Converting Paper Records to Electronic Storage 121
Properly Disposing of Medical Records 121
Guidelines Regarding Retention of Medical
Records 122
Making Corrections or Additions to Medical
Records 122
Charting Conflicting Orders 123
Ownership of the Medical Record 123
Electronic Medical Records 124
Using Electronic Records to Avoid Medical

Saving Time with Electronic Medical Records 126

Mistakes 125

Releasing Medical Records 126
Subpoenaed Medical Records 127
Situations When Original Medical Records May Be
Released 127
Releasing Information When the Physician Leaves
the Practice 127
Disclosure of a Minor's Medical
Information 127
Super-Protected Medical Information 127
Mandatory Reporting Requirements 127
Reporting Cases of Abuse 128
Reporting Certain Illnesses and Injuries 128
Documenting Advance Directives 128
Faxing Medical Records 128
Improper Disclosure of Medical Records 130
Online Medical Records 131
Documentation of Prescription Refill Requests 131
Medical Records in Research 132

CHAPTER 7 Legal and Ethical Issues in Managing the Medical Office 138

Terminating the Physician-Patient

Use of Patient Satisfaction Data 150

Relationship 149

xii Contents

Ethical Dilemmas 150
Treating Minors in the Medical Office 152
Receiving and Processing Subpoenas 152

CHAPTER 8 Personnel Management 156

Chapter Outline 156 Learning Objectives 156 Key Terms 157 Case Study 157 Introduction 158 Determining Staffing Needs 158 Determining the Type of Staff Needed 159 Writing a Job Description 161 The Job Description Used in Disciplinary Action 161 Using the Job Description during the Interview Process 161 Advertising for Employees 162 Screening Résumés 163 Telephone Screening Interviews 164 Using the Human Resources Department to Screen Applicants 164 Scheduling the Interviews 165 Interviewing Applicants 165 Illegal Interview Questions 166 Calling for References 166 Background Checks 167 Verifying Education 167 Calling to Offer Employment 167 Orientation of the New Employee 168 Probationary Status 169 Developing Training Programs for the New Employee 169 Employment at Will 169 Different Supervisory Techniques for Different Personalities 169 Employee Evaluations 170 Employee Discipline 171 Verbal Warnings 172 Written Warnings 172 Employee Assistance Programs 174 Employee Termination 175 Sexual Harassment and the Workplace 175 Providing Employee References 176 Writing Letters of Recommendation 176 Maintaining the Employee Personnel File 177

CHAPTER 9 Regulatory Compliance in the Healthcare Setting 182

Chapter Outline 182 Learning Objectives 182

Key Terms 183 Case Study 183 Introduction 184 The Impact of HIPAA Legislation on Patient Care 184 Preexisting Conditions 184 Title II of HIPAA Legislation 184 Disclosure of Information to the Patient 185 The Minimum Necessary Rule 185 Allowing Patients to Make Corrections to Their Health Record 186 Outlining Disclosures to the Patient 186 The HIPAA Privacy Officer 187 The Use of Electronic Billing 187 The HIPAA Security Rule 187 Administrative Safeguards under the Security *Rule* 187 Physical Safeguards under the Security Rule 188 Technical Safeguards under the Security Rule 188 The Unique Identifier Rule 188 HIPAA Enforcement Rule 188 The Business Associate Agreement and HIPAA Legislation 189 The Red Flags Rule 190 Developing a Corporate Compliance Plan 191 The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act 191 The Joint Commission and Ambulatory Care 192 OSHA and Ambulatory Care 192 Bloodborne Pathogens and OSHA 193 Hazard Communication Safety Data Sheet 195 The OSHA Exposure Control Plan 195 Labeling Biohazards 195 Personal Protective Equipment 196 Other OSHA-Mandated Safety Precautions 197 CLIA and Ambulatory Care 197 Fraud and Abuse 198 Examples of Fraud and Abuse 199 Penalties Associated with Fraud and Abuse 199

CHAPTER 10 Use of Computers in the Medical Office 204

Avoiding Fraud and Abuse 199

Healthcare Reform 200

Chapter Outline 204
Learning Objectives 204
Key Terms 205
Case Study 205
Introduction 206
Components of the Computer System 206
Components of Computer Hardware 206
Computer Peripherals 208

Maintaining Computer Equipment 210
Surge Protection 210
Backing up the Computer System 210
Computer Software 210
Training Staff on Medical Software 211
Various Software Packages 211
Coding Software 212
Computer Security 212
Computer Viruses 213
Electronic Medical Records 213
Using the Internet 214
Prescription Management Software 215
Ergonomics in the Medical Office 215

CHAPTER 11 Office Policies and Procedures 220

Chapter Outline 220 Learning Objectives 220 Key Terms 221 Case Study 221 Introduction 222 Creating Patient Education Pamphlets 222 Creating a Personnel Manual 223 Creating Policies and Procedures for the Medical Office 225 Mission Statement 227 Organizational Charts 227 Clinical Procedures 227 Administrative Procedures 228 Infection Control Procedures 229 Quality Improvement and Risk Management Procedures 229

CHAPTER 12 Accounting and Payroll in the Medical Office 234

Chapter Outline 234
Learning Objectives 234
Key Terms 235
Case Study 235
Introduction 236
Introduction to Managerial Accounting 236
Costs of Products and Services 236
Products and Services Sold 236
Variable Costs 237
Fixed Costs 237
Developing Budgets in the Medical Office 237
Petty Cash 238
Processing Payroll 238
History of Payroll Taxes 239
Payroll Laws 239

Workers' Compensation 243 Creating a Record for a New Employee Updating the Employee Record 245 Employee Records Must Be Kept Confidential 245 Use of the W-4 Form 245 *Updating the W-4 Form* 248 Keeping a Record of the Number of Hours Employees Work 248 Calculating Payroll 248 Employees Paid on an Hourly Basis Employees Paid on a Salaried Basis 249 Computing Payroll Deductions 249 IRS Circular E 250 Other Deductions 253 Using Computer Software to Calculate Payroll 253 The W-2 Form 253 Garnishment of Wages 253 Accounts Payable 254 The Checkbook Register 255 Preparing a Deposit Slip Endorsement Stamps 256 Online Banking 256 Reconciling the Bank Statement 256

CHAPTER 13 Billing and Collections 262

Chapter Outline 262 Learning Objectives 262 Key Terms 263 Case Study 263 Introduction 264 Fee Schedules 264 Participating Provider Agreements Credit and Collections 265 Using Preprinted Brochures 266 Collecting from Patients 267 Selecting a Credit Limit to Extend to Patients 268 Verifying Patient Identification 268 Managing the Accounts Receivable 269 Collection Policies and Working with Managed Care 270 Forgiving Deductibles or Copayments 270 Types of Payments 271 Offering a Professional Courtesy 271 Patient Billing Statements 272 Collecting from the Patient in the Office 273 Dismissing a Patient from Care due to Nonpayment of a Bill 273 Charging Interest on Medical Accounts 274 When a Patient's Check Is Returned by the Bank 274 When a Patient Does Not Pay a Bill 275 Sending Collection Letters to Patients 275 Use of Collection Agencies 275 Uncollectible Accounts 277 Collecting from Estates 277

xiv Contents

When Patients File Bankruptcy 278 Overpayments on Accounts 279 Small Claims Court 279

CHAPTER 14 Health Insurance 286

Chapter Outline 286 Learning Objectives 286 Key Terms 287 Case Study 287 Introduction 288 History of Health Insurance 288 Health Insurance Today Healthcare Reform 289 Health Insurance Terminology 291 Members and their Families 291 Premiums 291 Allowed Amounts Deductibles 292 Copayments and Coinsurance 292 Stop Loss and Lifetime Maximums 293 Waiting Periods, Exclusions, and Preexisting Conditions 293 Types of Health Insurance Plans 295 Fee-for-Service Plans 295 Managed Care Plans 295 Capitated Plans 297 COBRA Coverage 298 Individual Health Insurance Policies 299 Flexible Spending and Healthcare Savings Accounts 299 Consumer-Directed Healthcare Plans 300 Elective Procedures 300 Prescription Drug Coverage 301 Medicare 303 National Provider Identifier 303 Medicare Part A 304 Medicare Part B 304 Advance Beneficiary Notice 304 Medicare Part C 304 Medicare Part D 306 Secondary Insurance with Medicare 306 Medicare Patients Who Are Currently Employed 306 Providers Participating in the Medicare Plan 306 Medicaid 307 Medicare as Primary, Medicaid as Secondary 308 Covered Medicaid Services 308 State Children's Health Insurance Program 309 TRICARE 309 CHAMPVA 310 Insurance Coverage for Accidental Injuries 311 Disability Insurance 312

Processing Claims 312

Medical Claims for Injuries 312

Patient Registration 312
Verifying Eligibility 314
Coordinating Insurance Benefits 315
Referrals, Authorizations, and
Precertifications 316
Documenting Calls To and From Insurance
Companies 316
Health Insurance Claim Forms 316
CMS-1500 Claim Form 318
Filing Timelines 319
Electronic Billing 319
Reconciling Payments and Rejections 319
Sending Supporting Documentation 320
Office of the Insurance Commissioner 320

CHAPTER 15 Procedural and Diagnostic Coding 324

Chapter Outline 324 Learning Objectives 324 Key Terms 325 Case Study 325 Introduction 326 History of Procedural Coding 326 Current Procedural Terminology Codes 326 Tabular Index 327 Appendices 328 Determining the Proper Procedure Code 330 Evaluation and Management Codes 331 Elements of E&M Codes 332 Anesthesia Codes 332 Surgery Codes 332 Postoperative or Follow-Up Days 334 Radiology Codes 334 Pathology and Laboratory Codes 335 Medicine Codes 335 Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System 336 Proper Documentation 336 History of Diagnostic Coding 337 ICD-10-CM Coding 337 Using the ICD-10-CM Coding Manual 337 Finding the Correct Code 338 Coding More Than One Diagnosis 340

CHAPTER 16 Quality Improvement and Risk Management 344

Chapter Outline 344
Learning Objectives 344
Key Terms 345
Case Study 345
Introduction 346

Creating a Quality Improvement Program 346 Avoiding Patient Injury 348 Developing a Trusting Relationship with Your Patients 348 Reporting Test Results Quickly 349 Communicating Possible Outcomes 350 Communicating with Other Team Members Recognizing Your Limitations and Scope of Practice 352 Documenting Noncompliance 352 Medication Errors 353 Reporting Near Misses/Good Catches 354 Communicating After an Adverse Outcome 354 Service Recovery 355 Incident Reporting 356 Decreasing the Likelihood of Mistakes 357 Personal Accountability—Owning Our Mistakes 358 Use of Protective Equipment 358 Hazardous Waste Disposal 359 Employee Safety 360

CHAPTER 17 Marketing the Medical Office 364

Chapter Outline 364
Learning Objectives 364
Key Terms 365
Case Study 365
Introduction 366
Funding a Marketing Initiative 366
Understanding the Demographic 367
Researching Your Strengths, Weaknesses, and Opportunities 368
Researching the Competition 368
Using the Internet for Marketing 369
A Robust Website 369

Direct Mail Advertising 370 Purchasing Mailing Lists 371 Welcome to the Neighborhood 372 Offering Screenings 372 Social Media Sites 373 Using Focus Groups 373 Targeting Local Businesses 374 Offering Educational Speaking Engagements 374 Telephone Books as Advertising Sources 375 On-Hold Messaging 375 Offering Exceptional Customer Service to Keep Patients Satisfied 376 Patients as Advertising Tools 377 Writing Articles for Local Newspapers or Periodicals 377 Targeting the Local Media 378 Hiring a Marketing Consultant 378

Appendices

Appendix A

Professionals 382 Appendix B Sample Medical Office Policy and Procedure Manual 383 Appendix C Guidelines for Documenting in the Medical Record to Ensure Proper Coding 401 Answers to Chapter Case Study Appendix D Ouestions 402 Appendix E Registered Medical Assistant (RMA) Task List 409 Appendix F CMA (AAMA) Occupational Analysis 412 Appendix G Medical Terminology Word Parts 414

Internet Websites for Healthcare

Glossary 427 Index 437

The Development of This Book

As someone who has spent over 25 years in medical office management, I have seen many changes to the way medicine is practiced and the way medical offices are managed. While developing this book it has been my goal to present it in an easy-to-understand format, which will be beneficial for both the new medical office manager or the student who intends to pursue medical office management and to the established manager who may be looking for tips and insights to make his or her job easier.

This book contains information that addresses the specific needs of the medical office manager, from hiring and retaining the right personnel to researching, developing, and marketing new product lines. A thorough review of the competing titles showed numerous areas where they were lacking. With information included on the development of staffing models, proper coding techniques, and tips for coaching and mentoring of staff, this book is robust in all areas of the medical office manager's job.

New to This Edition

- Updated material regarding the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.
- Tips on continuing education for medical office managers and efficient use of social media.
- The importance of maintaining high staff satisfaction levels.
- Expanded information on performing employee evaluations.
- The use of kiosks for patient check-in.
- Updated material on healthcare reform in the United States.
- Reimbursement to healthcare providers based on patient outcomes.
- Accountable Care Organizations and reimbursement.
- The importance of healthcare risk management.

Organization of the Book

This book is presented in a way that provides the reader with a natural flow of information, ranging from why a person might choose to work in the field of medical office management to how to actually perform the job. The book presents a unique approach to teaching medical office management and includes specific procedures and techniques that have proven effective in the management of the medical office. The Registered Medical Assistant (RMA) Task List and the Occupational Analysis of the CMA (AAMA) (see Appendices E and F, respectively) make this book a useful tool for medical office management in medical assisting programs.

This book is divided into 17 chapters that include the latest information on the design and management of the medical office. From developing the skills needed to succeed as a medical office manager to attracting and keeping the best staff, this book can be used as a how-to guide by both a professional medical office manager or a student pursuing medical office management. At the same time, an experienced office manager might use it as a guide for perfecting the art of managing the medical office.

Chapter 1 contains information on today's healthcare environment. This chapter outlines the type of practice settings a manager may encounter and includes information on the traits of the medical office manager.

Chapter 2 contains information on the duties of the medical office manager, including conducting staff meetings, coaching, and motivating employees to higher performance, and dealing with suppliers and service contracts.

Chapter 3 addresses types of communication in the medical office, including both verbal and nonverbal communication. This chapter includes information on written communication, including the components of writing a business letter.

Chapter 4 discusses the steps for managing the front office in a medical clinic. The use of telephones, including features of various telephone systems, and the greeting of patients in the front office are covered in this chapter.

Chapter 5 goes into detail of appointment scheduling and the process of triaging and screening callers to the medical office.

Chapter 6 includes information on the management of medical records in the medical office. This chapter contains current information on the use of electronic medical records, as well as the use of paper records, for those offices that are not yet using an electronic system for medical records management.

Chapter 7 contains in-depth information on the legal and ethical issues involved in managing the medical office. This chapter outlines the process of maintaining professional files for physicians and the legal obligations associated with mandatory reporting in healthcare.

Chapter 8 describes the steps to successfully managing the personnel in the medical office. This chapter contains information on how to perform a staffing model profile as well as advertising for, interviewing, and hiring the right candidate for a particular job.

Chapter 9 contains important information on the regulatory requirements of the medical office manager, including recently passed legislation, such as the Red Flags Rule.

Chapter 10 details the use of computers in the medical office, including the design of training programs for new employees.

Chapter 11 outlines the use and creation of office policies and procedures in the medical office, including policies that apply to the administrative as well as clinical areas of the office. (Appendix B includes a sample policy and procedure manual.)

Chapter 12 addresses the function of accounting and payroll in the medical office. This chapter has great detail on the use of various IRS forms as well as details on managing accounts payable.

Chapter 13 describes the function of billing and collecting in the medical office. From creating a fee schedule to managing the accounts receivables, this chapter provides a lot of detail for the management of finances in the medical office.

Chapter 14 has current information on health insurance and the processing of medical claims.

Chapter 15 contains information on the use of procedural and diagnostic coding in the medical office.

Chapter 16 outlines the use of quality improvement and risk management programs in the medical office, an important area to concentrate on in order to reduce patient and employee injuries and increase patient satisfaction.

Chapter 17 describes the function of marketing in the medical office, including details on creating a robust website and the use of social media in advertising.

Unique Features of the Book

- **Learning Objectives:** Specific learning objectives appear at the beginning of each chapter, stating what will be achieved upon successful completion of the chapter.
- **Key Terminology:** Key term definitions appear in the margins where the terms are first introduced. Key terms are also defined in the comprehensive glossary.
- Chapter Outline: A list of major chapter topics appears at the beginning of each chapter to highlight key areas of study.

- Case Studies: A thought-provoking case study is presented at the beginning of each chapter, and case-specific questions appear at the end of each chapter. Answers to the case study questions are provided in Appendix D.
- **Introduction:** The introduction presents the main concepts discussed in each chapter.
- Critical Thinking Questions: Critical thinking questions are interspersed throughout the chapter. Students must rely on the content in the chapter and their own critical thinking skills to answer the questions.
- **Photos and Illustrations:** These support the textual material presented and reinforce key concepts.
- **Informational Tables:** These tables appear throughout the book and summarize pertinent information for the reader. They provide students with visuals and comparisons to reinforce the lesson.
- **Chapter Summary:** The chapter summary is a brief restatement of key points in the chapter.
- Chapter Review Questions: End-of-chapter questions are provided in multiple-choice, true/false, and matching format and are designed to help reinforce learning. The review questions measure the students' understanding of the material presented in the chapter and are available for use by the student or by the instructor as an outcomes assessment.
- Chapter Resources: A list of related books and websites appears at the end of each chapter. In addition, Appendix A lists valuable Internet resources for healthcare professionals.
- Appendices: Many useful appendices appear at the end of the book, including Internet websites for healthcare professionals, a sample medical office policy and procedure manual, guidelines for documenting in the medical record to ensure proper coding, answers to chapter case study questions, the Registered Medical Assisting (RMA) Task List, the Occupational Analysis of the CMA (AAMA), and medical terminology word parts.

The Learning Package

THE STUDENT PACKAGE

- Textbook
- Student Resources (www.pearsonhighered.com/healthprofessionsresources)

THE INSTRUCTIONAL PACKAGE

To access supplementary materials online, instructors need to request an instructor access code. Go to www.pearsonhighered.com/irc to register for an instructor access code. Within 48 hours of registering, you will receive a confirming e-mail including an instructor access code. Once you have received your code, locate your book in the online catalog and click on the instructor resources button on the left side of the catalog product page. Select a supplement, and a login page will appear. Once you have logged in, you can access instructor material for all Pearson textbooks. If you have any difficulties accessing the site or downloading a supplement, please contact customer service at http://support.pearson.com/getsupport

This book has the following instructor's resources.

- Instructor's manual with lesson plans
- PowerPointTM lecture slides
- TestGenTM

About the Author

Christine Malone, MHA, MBA, CMPE, CPHRM, FACHE, EdD, studied management practice and theory at Henry Cogswell College, receiving her Bachelor of Science in Professional Management. She continued her education at the University of Washington, obtaining her Master of Science in Health Administration (MHA). Christine then went on to complete her MBA at Northcentral University, and her Doctorate in Applied Leadership (EdD) at City University of Seattle.

Christine has over 25 years of experience in the healthcare field, having spent time working as a dental assistant, medical receptionist, X-ray technician, medical clinic director for both primary and specialty care, director of hospital services, and as a consultant to healthcare providers, focusing on strategic management, efficient office flow, and human resource management. Since 2004, Christine has been teaching within the Health Professions Department at Everett Community College in Washington State. There she teaches Medical Office Management, Computer Applications in the Medical Office, Medical Practice Finances, Intercultural Communication in Healthcare, Healthcare Risk Management, and Medical Law and Ethics. Christine is the author of *Administrative Medical Assisting: Foundations and Practice* and the coauthor of *Comprehensive Medical Assisting: Foundations and Practice*.

In 2006, Christine researched and developed a certificate program in Healthcare Risk Management. This series of three courses is offered via distance learning and provides the student who successfully completes the three courses with a Certificate in Healthcare Risk Management. In 2013, Christine began working with City University of Seattle, designing a Bachelor of Science and a Master of Science in Healthcare Administration program. These programs are taught via distance learning to students from all over the United States.

Christine was elected to the Snohomish County Charter Review Commission, a one-year position during 2005–2006. She has served as the chair of the Young Careerists Group within the Business and Professional Women's Association of Greater Everett, is a member of the Northwest Partnership for Palliative Care, and is active in volunteer work with Planned Parenthood of the Northwest. Christine serves as a Volunteer Professional Mentor with the University of Washington MHA program as well as with the American College of Healthcare Executives.

Christine has achieved certifications in numerous professional groups, including the American College of Healthcare Executives, the American Society for Healthcare Risk Management, and the American College of Medical Practice Executives. She is also a member of many other professional associations, including the Washington State Healthcare Executive Forum, the Medical Group Management Association, the Healthcare Quality Association, the American Association of Healthcare Administrative Management, the Health Care Administrators Association, and the Healthcare Financial Management Association. Christine has been the guest speaker at various events on healthcare issues and in continuing education meetings across the country and has received her certification as a Certified Professional Instructor, certification in vocational teaching, and pediatric palliative care training.

Christine lives with her two youngest children in Marysville, Washington. In 1999, her third child, Ian, was injured due to medical negligence during his birth. Ian lived four and a half years before succumbing to his injuries in 2004. This was the genesis of Christine's work toward improving patient safety in healthcare. Her input has been sought by legislative committees, editorial boards, and many policymakers. A nationally recognized healthcare reform advocate, Christine has appeared on the *Today Show*, *NBC Nightly News*, *ABC Nightly News*, the CBC's *The National*, in *The New York Times*, *The Los Angeles Times*, and on *Salon.com*.

Acknowledgments

The author would like to thank her family for their patience and understanding while this second edition was completed.

Reviewers

The author and publisher wish to thank the following reviewers, all of whom provided valuable feedback and helped shape the final text:

Donna Castellano, BS Senior Adjunct Professor Westchester Community College, New York

Brian Dickens, MA, MBA, RMA, CHI Medical Instructor, Department Chair Southeastern College, Florida

Gwen Hester, Ed.D.

Instructor

Richland College, Texas

Breanne Marshburn, MA, MHA, CPhT

Instructor

Randolph Community College, North Carolina

Paula D. Silver, BS, PharmD Medical Instructor ECPI University, Virginia

Devonica Vaught, MA, MSHI, RHIA Instructor, Program Director

Indian River State College, Florida Barbara Williams, CPC, CRS

Part-time Instructor

Virginia Western Community College, Virginia

Reviewers from the Previous Edition:

Brian Dickens, MBA, RMA, CHI

Regional Medical Assistant Program Director

Keiser Career College and Southeastern Institute, Florida

Kathryn M. Foit, CMA (AAMA), AAS, MSEd, CPC

Associate Professor

Erie Community College, New York

Melissa D. Hibbard, CEHRS, CMRS, CPC, CPhT

Program Director, Medical Business

Miami Jacobs Career College, Obio

Olivia Kerr, MBA

Coordinator, Professor of Business Office Systems and Support Program El Centro College, Texas

Joann Monks, RN, BSN, BC, MBA, RMA

Program Director of Medical Assistant Program

Salter College, Massachusetts

Traci Strobel, BC, CBCS, CCS-P

Oakton Community College, Illinois